

International Journal of Innovative Research and Reviews ISSN: 2636-8919 Website: www.injirr.com doi:

Research paper, Short communication, Review, Technical paper



RESEARCH ARTICLE

Impact of Electromagnetic Field on Bacteriological and Physicochemical Qualities of Palm Oil Mill Effluent from Ikeji-Arakeji

Dolalekan Blessing BALOGUN^{1,*} Felix Akinsola AKINYOSOYE² Daniel Juwon AROTUPIN²

¹ Department of Biological Sciences, Joseph Ayo Babalola University, Ikeji Arakeji, Osun State Nigeria ² Department of Microbiology, Federal University Technology, Akure, Ondo State, Nigeria

ABSTRACT

* Corresponding author E-mail: balogunlekan208@gmail.com

A R T I C L E I N F O Received : 07.07.2022 Accepted : 10.10.2022 Published : 12.15.2022

Keywords: Electromagnetic field Microbiological Pathogenic microbes Physicochemical conditions

Effluent from industries contains physical, chemical and biological pollutants which can occur from anthropogenic activities. This study investigated the microorganisms present in effluent from palm oil mill and to know the impact of Electromagnetic field (EMF) treatment on bacterial population and physicochemical characteristics of palm oil mill effluent. Microbiological investigation on effluent was carried out using standard methods. Collection of samples were done from palm oil mill in Ipetu Ijesa. Bacteria isolated from industrial effluent samples during raining season were Bacillus cereus, Bacillus subtilis, Enterobacter aerogenes, Enterococcus faecalis, Klebsiella oxytoca, Lactococcus lactis, Micrococcus luteus, Salmonella typhi, Staphylococcus aureus, Staphylococcus epidermidis, Staphylococcus saprophyticus, Shigella flexneri, Streptococcus viridians and Pseudomonas aeruginosa. The fungi isolated were Aspergillus niger, Aspergillus flavus, Aspergillus fumigates, Fusarium culmorum, Rhizopus stolonifer and Saccharomyces cerevisiae had the highest bacterial load 2.45×104cfu/ml and Cassava processing plant had lowest bacterial load 1.78×104 cfu/ml. Bacillus cereus was the dominant bacterial specie while Aspergillus flavus was the dominant fungal specie. Palm oil mill effluent had the highest mean for colour (19.15Pt/co), pH value (10.48), temperature (27.33°C), conductivity (240µS/cm) total soluble solids (322 mg/l) total hardness (251mg/l). Effluent from the brewery had highest value for iron (3.67 ± 0.02) . Therefore, from the study the effluents from all industries had high microbial load and physicochemical parameters that exceeded the tolerable levels set by WHO standards. The availability of some isolates and toxic substances can serve as of populace inhabiting these places.

Contents

1. Introduction	
2. Methodology	
2.1. Area of study	
2.2. Collection of effluent	
2.3. Characterization and identification of bacterial isolates	
2.4. Determination of the impact of EMF on bacterial load of waste waters	
2.5. Analyses of raw and treated water	
2.6. Physicochemical examination	
2.7. Determination of metals	
2.8. Statistical survey	
3. Results	
4. Discussion	
Acknowledgements	

Cite this article Balogun OB, Akinyosoye FA, Arotupin DJ. Impact of Electromagnetic Field on Bacteriological and Physicochemical Qualities of Palm Oil Mill Effluent from Ikeji-Arakeji. *International Journal of Innovative Research and Reviews (INJIRR)* (2022) 6(2) 99-105 *Link to this article:* http://www.injirr.com/article/view/109



Copyright © 2022 Authors.

This is an open access article distributed under the <u>Creative Commons Attribution-NonCommercial-NoDerivatives 4.0 International License</u>, which permits unrestricted use, and sharing of this material in any medium, provided the original work is not modified or used for commercial purposes.

Author Contributions	
Declaration of Conflict of Interest	
References	

1. Introduction

Effluent is the discharge of fueloline or liquid from artificial infrastructure or herbal waters. Effluent can contain physical, chemical and biological pollutants [1]. Effluent can come from waste disposed by man, such as emiction, faeces, latrine and also from cesspool leakage; sewage discharge [2]. Effluent will also be conveyed in a sanitary sewer or mixed sewer which conveys simplest sewage pollutants after use [3]. When effluent is not properly treated and it is discharged to the surroundings it can be as a source of threat to ecological and environmental especially aquatic lives [4]. Palm oil mill effluent (POME) are effluent that flow from small scale industry which oil is extracted from palm kernel. If palm oil effluent is not handle well by providing a good storing system so that it can be treated before discharging into environments [5]. In palm oil milling method, POME is produced from processing of palm oil. In this process in production of palm oil milling, it requires a large amount of steam and warm water are used. POME appears thick brownish liquid this is compiled with excessive concentrations of total solids. It also contains some chemical substances such as chemical oxygen demand (COD), and organic oxygen demand (BOD) [6]. Pollutants from palm oil mill can lead to global `water crisis` which contains toxic substances and trace elements in form of carcinogens. Effluent from palm oil if is move into the water our bodies is certainly considered one as a significant environmental pollutants which can affect human being coming in contact directly to man [7]. Release of effluent from palm oil into the surrounding water which make the depositing water not suitable for various domestic uses [8]. The study is to assess the physical and chemical constituents of palm oil mill effluent and also to discover the impact of Electromagnetic field on microorganisms isolated and physicochemical properties of effluent from palm oil mill [9].

2. Methodology

2.1. Area of study

Palm oil mill effluent were collected in Ikeji Arakeji, one of the town that make up of oriade local government area of Osun state Nigeria, part of Yoruba ethnic group. It is situated at 37 km before Akure (Capital of Ondo State). It is situated Latitude 7°55N and longitude 5°19E.

2.2. Collection of effluent

Effluent were collected from a big container of palm oil mill using disinfected bottle and conveyed to the laboratory for analysis.

2.3. Characterization and identification of bacterial isolates

The bacteria isolated were characterized using microscopy and morphological characteristics such as shape,

arrangement and gram staining. Also it was characterized using biochemical reactions such as motility, sugar fermentation, urease, citrate test etc. It is described in Benson's microbiological application and identify of bacteria were done using Bergey's manual for identification of bacteria [9, 10].

2.4. Determination of the impact of EMF on bacterial load of waste waters

A circuit from electricity that initiated the electric and magnetic field intensities were used for this investigation and it was produced at the Physics department in Nigeria institute of Science and Technology. 25ml of effluent was brought from palm oil mill and it was introduced on a conical flask which was exposed to EMF at different EMF intensities 70nT, 80nT, 100nT, 110nT 120nT and 130nT. Microbial analyses were done before exposure to EMF and 6-hour interval exposure to EMF after 24 hours it was done after 12-hour interval.

2.5. Analyses of raw and treated water

Microbiological analysis was carried out on the sample and later the sample was subjected to Electromagnetic field between 0 hours to 96 hours. The triplicate values of the bacteria colony and physicochemical analysis for the sample were counted and recorded.

2.6. Physicochemical examination

The physicochemical characteristics of the effluent were determining by the methodology which is in accordance to [11]. The physicochemical parameters that was study was total dissolve solid, total soluble solid, chloride, sulfate, nitrate, sodium etc.

2.7. Determination of metals

Heavy metals of the effluents that was studied were Cadmium, Iron, Chromium, Copper, Nickel, Lead, Zinc, Manganese. The mineral analyses were carried out using the methods by [11].

2.8. Statistical survey

Experimental numerical data were exposed to mean and mean separated using excel 13.0 version. Mean difference was considered significant at p <= 0.05.

3. Results

Table 1 Point out the morphological and biochemical analysis of bacteria isolated from palm oil mill effluent. It is based on shape, arrangement, urease, citrate, sugar fermentation, methyred etc. Ten bacteria isolates were isolated from palm oil mill effluent.

	MI	CROS	COPY			BIOCHEMICAL MEDIA SUGAR FERMENTATION														
Isolate Code	Gram Staining	Shape	Arrangement	Catalase	Coagulase	Motility	Hydrogen Sulphide	Citrate	Urease	Mr	Vp	Emb	Ssa	Msa	Lactose	Sucrose	Maltose	Glucose	Mannitol	Probable Isolates
IL1	+ve	Cocci	Cluster	+ve	-ve	-ve	-ve	+ve	+ve	-ve	-ve	С	С	Y	AG	А	А	AG	А	SS
IL2	+ve	Rod	Chain	-ve	+ve	+ve	-ve	-ve	+ve	-ve	-ve	С	С	С	-ve	Α	Α	AG	AG	BC
IL3	+ve	Cocci	Cluster	+ve	+ve	-ve	+ve	+ve	+ve	-ve	+ve	С	С	Y	AG	А	А	AG	А	SA
IL4	-ve	Rod	Chain	+ve	-ve	+ve	-ve	+ve	+ve	-ve	+ve	Р	С	С	AG	AG	AG	AG	AG	EA
IL5	-ve	Rod	Chain	+ve	-ve	+ve	-ve	+ve	+ve	-ve	+ve	G	С	Р	AG	AG	AG	AG	AG	EC
IL6	-ve	Cocci	Chain	-ve	-ve	+ve	+ve	-ve	+ve	+ve	+ve	С	С	С	AG	AG	AG	AG	А	LL
IL7	+ve	Cocci	Cluster	+ve	+ve	-ve	+ve	-ve	+ve	-ve	+ve	С	С	С	AG	AG	AG	AG	А	ML
IL8	+ve	Cocci	Cluster	+ve	-ve	-ve	-ve	-ve	+ve	-ve	+ve	С	С	С	AG	AG	AG	Α	Α	EF
IL9	+ve	Rod	Chain	-ve	+ve	+e	-ve	-ve	+ve	-ve	+ve	С	С	С	-ve	А	-ve	AG	AG	BS
IL10	+ve	Cocci	Cluster	+ve	-ve	-ve	-ve	+ve	-ve	-ve	-ve	С	С	Y	AG	А	AG	AG	-	SS

Table 1 Cultural and biochemical characteristics of bacteria isolated from effluent from palm oil mill

LEGEND: A = Acid production, + = Positive reaction C=Colourless- P= Pink Y= Yellow, AG = Acid and Gas production, MSA=Mannitol salt agar EMB=Eosin methylene blue B= Black, G= Green, - = Negative reaction. SSA=Salmonella Shigella agar *Isolates*: SS: S. saprophyticus, BC: B. cereus, SA: S. aureus, EA: E. aerogenes, EC: E. coli, LL: L. lactis, ML: M. luteus, EF: E. faecalis, BS: B. subtilis, SS: S. saprophyticus



Presented in In Figure 1, are the impact of EMF at different intensities versus time interval. The error bars in the figure correspond to ± 1 SE.

On the other hand, the effects of EMFs (70nT, 80nT, 100nT, 110nT, 120nT, 130nT,) on the existence and types of bacteria isolated from palm oil mill effluent from 0 hours to 96 hours are presented separately in the Tables Table 2, Table 3, Table 4, Table 5, Table 6, and Table 7, respectively.

The tables detail the impacts of EMF intensities on the appearance and existence of the isolates in different time intervals, i.e. 0, 6-hour, 12-hour, 24 hour, 36-hour, 48-hour, 60-hour, 72-hour, 84-hour, and 96-hour, in an effluent from Palm oil mill.

Figure 1 Impact of EMF at different intensities and time intervals on Bacterial loads from palm oil effluent.

Table 2 Impacts of EMF intensity (70nT) on appearence and existence of the isolates in an Effluent from Palm oil mill

Probable isolates	0	6	12	24	36	48	60	72	84	96
Staphylococcyus saprophyticus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-
Bacillus cereus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Staphylococcus aureus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-
Enterobacter aerogenes	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-
Lactococcus lactis	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-
Micrococcus luteus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Enterococcus faecalis	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-
Escherichia coli	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-
Bacillus subtilis	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+

Legend: +: Positive -: Negative.

Table 3 Impacts of EMF (80nT) on the appearence and existence of the isolates in an Effluent from Palm oil mill

Probable isolates	0	6	12	24	36	48	60	72	84	96
Staphylococcyus saprophyticus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-
Bacillus cereus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Staphylococcus aureus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-
Enterobacter aerogenes	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-
Lactococcus lactis	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-
Micrococcus varians	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Enterococcus faecalis	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-
Escherichia coli	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-
Bacillus subtilis	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
agande Le Docitiva - Nagativa										

Legend: +: Positive -: Negative.

Table 4 Impacts of EMF (100nT) on the appearence and existence of the isolates in an Effluent from Palm oil mill

Probable isolates	0	6	12	24	36	48	60	72	84	96
Staphylococcyus saprophyticus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-
Bacillus cereus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-
Staphylococcus aureus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-
Enterobacter aerogenes	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-
Lactococcus lactis	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-
Micrococcus lsuteus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-
Enterococcus faecalis	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-
Staphylococcus epidermidis	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-	-	-
Escherichia coli	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-

Legend: +: Positive -: Negative

Table 5 Impacts of EMF (110nT) on the appearence and existence of the isolates in an Effluent from Palm oil mill

Probable isolates	0	6	12	24	36	48	60	72	84	96
Staphylococcyus saprophyticus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-
Bacillus cereus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-
Staphylococcus aureus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-
Enterobacter aerogenes	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-
Lactococcus lactis	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-
Micrococcus varians	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-
Enterococcus faecalis	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-
Bacillus subtilis	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Staphylococcus epidermidis	+	+	+	+	-	-	-	-	-	-

Legend: +: Positive -: Negative

Table 6 Impacts of EMF (120nT) on the occurrence and existence of the isolates in an effluent from Palm oil mill

Probable isolates	0	6	12	24	36	48	60	72	84	96
Staphylococcyus saprophyticus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-
Bacillus cereus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-
Staphylococcus aureus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-
Enterobacter aerogenes	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-
Lactococcus lactis	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-
Micrococcus varians	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-
Enterococcus faecalis	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-
Bacillus subtilis	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
Staphylococcus epidermidis	+	+	+	+	-	-	-	-	-	-

Legend: +: Positive -: Negative.

Table 7 Impacts of EMF (130nT) on the occurrence and existence of the isolates in an effluent from Palm oil mill

Probable isolates	0	6	12	24	36	48	60	72	84	96
Staphylococcyus saprophyticus	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-	-	-
Bacillus cereus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-
Staphylococcus aureus	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-
Enterobacter aerogenes	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-	-
Lactococcus lactis	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-
Micrococcus varians	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-
Enterococcus faecalis	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-	-
Bacillus subtilis	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-
Staphylococcus epidermidis	+	+	+	+	-	-	-	-	-	-

Legend: +: Positive -: Negative.



Figure 2 Physicochemical analysis of raw and treatment effluent

Table 8 Metallic composition from palm oil mill effluent

Figure 2 shows the microbial loads of effluent samples from different industrial site that was subjected to different EMF strength (70nT, 80nT, 100nT, 110nT, 120nT and 130nT) at various time. The samples were collected from palm oil mill effluent. The triplicate values of the bacteria colony count were counted and recorded. Palm oil mill effluent had the highest mean values of microbial count with EMF strength 70nT, the bacterial count was 225 Cfu/ml.

Legend: Temp; Temperature, Cond; Conductivity, TS; Total solid; TDS; Total dissolved solid;

DO; Dissolve oxygen, BOD; Biological oxygen demand, COD; Chemical oxygen demand

Table 8 exhibits mineral composition of effluent from different industries. The mineral composition includes the iron, zinc, lead, chromium, cadmium, copper, manganese and nickel. Effluent from brewery industry had the highest value for raw sample, the treated sample values were reduced during the research.

1
3

Legend:Data are presented as Mean ± SD (n=2) from triplicate determinations, different superscripts in the same column are significantly different (P< 0.05).

Discussion 4.

Effluent can serve as a source of habitat to pathogenic microorganism, when there is effluent discharge by man into the water bodies had led to changes of water quality, which decline the rate usage of water for various purpose. Discharge of effluent from the commercial sectors has come to be an environmental problem for many nations specifically growing international locations like Nigeria [12]. Characteristics of effluent should be study by the use of widespread techniques which is used to ascertain the viable impact of effluent in the environment. Such analysis regularly contains figuring out the organic and physicochemical additives of the effluents [13]. The excessive amount of BOD and COD of the palm oil mill effluent because of is excessive polluting potential. The excessive awareness of nutrient in palm oil mill effluent similarly explains why POME are used for agricultural practices It can also serve as a source of pathogenic microorganisms [14]. It was observed that some microorganisms were isolated from cassava processing plant and bakery effluent and these microorganisms are *Staphylococcus* saprophyticus, **Bacillus** cereus, **Staphylococcus** aureus, Enterobacter aerogenes, Lactobacillus lactis, Micrococcus varians, Enteococcus faecalis, Bacillus subtillis and Staphylococcus epidermidis.

In this present study the findings that electromagnetic fields had denaturing or inhibiting effects on microorganisms were similar to the research carried out by Sale and who investigated that there is lethal effect on the microorganisms observed. The reduction of microbial population after subjected to high pulses of electric current which increase the rate of cellular membrane permeability of the microorganisms exposed to the electric field. The virulent effect of the field intensity resulted depend mainly on exposure and time of duration. Both Staphylococcus aureus and Micrococcus varians are opportunistic organisms, gram positive, circular in shape and capable of causing pneumonia. The ubiquity of Escherichia coli, Shigella flexneri, Enterobacter aerogenes and Salmonella typhi in the effluent shows that the effluent can run-off to nearby waterbodies such as stream, river if these waterbodies are used for domestic activities and it could serve as source of diseases especially when consumed for drinking water [15]. Similarly, the presence of *Lactobacillus lactis* present in the effluent are capable of causing bacteremia. The presence of E. coli and Enteococcus faecalis in the sample indicating potential of water pathogens is in congruent to the analysis of [16]. The presence of Bacillus subtillis and Staphylococcus epidermidis can cause disease in humans which can lead to a source of outbreaks [17]. The effect of Electromagnetic field on the microorganisms could depend on the types of microorganism and the time of exposure. It

was Bacillus subtillis and Micrococcus varians that was not inhibited at 70nT and 80nT. It was at 110nT that Bacillus subtillis and Micrococcus varians was inhibited after exposure to EMF which was in consistent to the findings of [14]. After exposure to EMF at 130nT it had highest inhibitory effect. Exposure of the isolates to magnetic and electric field intensity at 70nT had least effect on the metabolites been generated by the cells of the organisms which is in line to the investigation of [17]. The impact of magnetic intensity on total hardness, total dissolved solid and total soluble solid from palm oil mill effluent is experimentally studied by varying the magnetic field strength between 70nT and 130nT which reduced the values and this is in accordance to the findings of [18]. Total hardness value was 251 mg/l and it was reduced to 15.5 mg/l, while the total dissolved solid values was reduced from 154 to 3.21 mg/l and the values of TSS values was 251 to 15.5 mg/l and all this values are in congruent to the findings of [19]. The COD of industrial effluent before treatment was 10.3 mg/l which was reduced to 2.266 mg/l, the BOD values was 9.2mg/l to 4.2mg/l and dissolved oxygen was also reduced from 6.9mg/l to 4.55mg/l after application of electromagnetic field which is in conformity to the findings of [20]. The Chloride of effluent from palm oil mill was lower after treatment with EMF [21]. Thus from the foregoing discussion it is very clear that EMF play a degradative role in the presence of organic and inorganic matter from palm oil mill effluent [22]. Sulfate results was reduced from 44.33 mg/l to 13.55 mg/l, the values for nitrate were reduced from 9.5mg/l to 5.6mg/l which is uniform to the findings of [23]. Electromagnetic field had an inhibiting effect on mineral composition. Iron had the highest value for raw effluent 3.44±0.02a while at exposure to 70nT it was reduced to 2.88±0.02a, and it was reduced to least value 1.86±0.02a at 130nT. Lead had the lowest value for raw and treated effluent from palm oil mill which is harmonious to the research work by [23]. It was iron that had the highest value 4.11±0.02a at 70nT and it was reduced to 0.71±0.01d at 130nT which was similar to the findings of [3]. Lead had lowest value before and after application of Electromagnetic field [24]. Copper also had high value 1.54±0.03ab after application with 70nT which was reduced to 1.06±0.03de. After application to EMF the other mineral composition values were reduced. From the research it is very clear that the effluent had high microbial load, physicochemical composition and it shows that Electromagnetic play an important role in the bio-degradative activity of organic and inorganic matter when exposed to the fields and it can also inhibit pathogenic microorganisms [25].

Conclusion

Effluent can be a source of pathogenic microorganisms and if not properly treated before release into the environment especially into stream during runoff which can be used for domestic purposes, it can serve as potential peril or hazard to those that depend on the stream for domestic purposes. It was observed that EMF treatment has a significant effect on the microorganisms and physicochemical parameters of the industrial effluent and it doesn't have harmful effect at the long run. Also the research projected that use of EMF can be used for disinfection purposes compared to other form that may lead to potential threat to human being. For future purpose, electromagnetic field can be generated and can be power using solar, so that it can cost effective and a larger size can be produced.

Acknowledgements

I personally want to thank Dr A.O Olalemi and Dr O.O makinde for guidance and advice during composing and analyzing of results. I thank Prof K.I.T Eniola, Dr Bayo Osesusi and Mr Moyosoye for encouraging words during microbial analysis. I also want to thank Mr Bayo for helping me in constructing the electromagnetic field words cannot express my gratitude

Author Contributions

Research Conceptualization: Akinyosoye FA, Arotupin DJ, and Balogun O.B; Research Design: Akinyosoye FA; Supervision: Akinyosoye FA, Arotupin DJ; Materials: Balogun OB; Data Collection: Balogun OB; Data Analysis and Interpretation: Balogun OB; Literature Survey: Balogun OB; Writing Article: Balogun O.B; Critical Review: Akinyosoye FA and Arotupin DJ; Article Editing: Balogun OB; Final Approval: Akinyosoye FA and Arotupin DJ.

Declaration of Conflict of Interest

Authors declare that they have no conflict of interest with any person, institution, or company.

References

- Abdullah MP, Khalik W. Physicochemical analysis on water quality status of Bertam River in Cameron Highlands, Malaysia. *Malaysian Journal of Analytical Science* (2017) 16(45):163.
- [2] Adegoke OS. Waste management within the context of sustainable development. *Journal of Environmental Sciences* 20014(1):18–24.
- [3] Addo KK, Mensah GI, Bekoe M, Bonsu C, L AM. Bacteriological quality of sachet water produced and sold in Teshie-Nungua, Surburbs of Accra, Ghana. *African Journal Food Agricultural Nutrition Development* (2009) 9(4):1019–1030.
- [4] Ademoroti C. Environmental Chemistry and Toxicology, Foludex Press Ltd. *Ibadan* (1996):71–76.
- [5] Adetuyi FC, Boboye B, Balogun OB. Effects of Electromagnetic Fields on the Bacterial Load of Wastewater Samples from Selected Industries in Akure Metropolis. *International Journal of Environment, Agriculture and Biotechnology* (2017) 2(5):2685– 2697.
- [6] Adeyemo OK. Consequences of pollution and degradation of Nigerian aquatic environment on fisheries resources. *The Environmentalist* (2003) 23:297–306.
- [7] Adeyeye EI. Determination of heavy metals in Illisha Africana, associated Water, Soil Sediments from some fish ponds. *International Journal of Environmental Study* (1994) 45(4):231– 240.
- [8] Adeyinwo CE, Aiyesanmi AF, Ipinmoroti KO. Baseline Water Quality Status of Rivers Within Okitipupa Southeast Belt of the Bituminous Sands Field of Nigeria. *Nigerian Journal of Science* (2006) 4(3):62–71.
- [9] Adnan A, Taufeeq A, Malik E, Irfanul M, Ayazan K. Evaluation of industrial and city effluent quality using physicochemical and biological parameters. *Electronic Journal of Environmental*, *Agricultural and Food Chemistry* (2010) 9(5):931–939.
- [10] Aftab SY, Noorjahan CM, Dawood B, Sharif S. Physicochemical and fungal analysis of a fertilizer factory effluent. *Nature Environment and Pollution Technology* (2015) 4(4):529–531.
- [11] Bharti K, Arup G, Kumar K. Evaluation of physicochemical parameters and minerals status of different water sources at high

altitude. *Peertechz Journal of Environmental and toxicology* (2017) **2**(1):10–18.

- [12] Chavan RP, Lokhande RS, Rajput SI. Monitoring of organic pollutants in Thane creek water. *Nature of Environment and Pollution Technology* (2015) 4(4):633–636.
- [13] Cheesbrough M. District Laboratory Practice in Tropical Countries. Part 2 Press Syndicate of the university of Cambridge. United Kingdom (2006):63–70.
- [14] F.A. I, O.B B. Impact of Electromagnetic field on Bacteria population and Physicichemical properties of cassava wastewater. *Journal of applied science, environment and management* (2022) 6(4):611–627.
- [15] Julian KT, Marianne S, Shaun R. Contaminated Groundwater Sampling and Quality Control. of Water Analyses. *British Geological Survey* (2018):25–45.
- [16] Olaoye RA, Oladeji OS. Preliminary Assessment of Effects of Paint Industry Effluents on Local Groundwater Regime in Ibadan, Nigeria. *International Journal Engineering Reserve* (2015) 4:518– 522.
- [17] Olaniyi I, Raphel O, Nwadiogbu JO. Effect of Industrial Effluent on the Surrounding Environment. Archive Applied Science Reserve (2012) 4:406–413.
- [18] Onuegbu TU, Umoh ET, Onwuekwe IT. Physico—Chemical Analysis of Effluents from Jacbon Chemical Industries Limited, Makers of Bonalux Emulsion and Gloss Paints. *International Journal Science Technology* (2013) 2:169.
- [19] Orisakwe OE, R. A, Obi E, Afonne OJ, Dioka CE, Ilondu AD, et al. Ecotoxicological Study of the Niger Delta. Area of the River Niger. Bulletin of Environmental Contamination and toxicology (2020) 66:548–552.
- [20] Oyhakilome GI, Aiyesanmi AF, Akharaiyi FC. Water Quality Assessment of the Owena Multi-Purpose Dam, Ondo State, Southwestern Nigeria. *Journal of Environmental Protection* (2012) 3(22):14–25.
- [21] Ram SL, Pravin US, Deepali SP. Study on Physico-chemical Parameters of WasteWater Effluents from Taloja Industrial Area of Mumbai, India. *International Journal Ecosystem* (2019) 2(5).
- [22] Tesfalem BW, Abdrie SH. Toxicity Study of Heavy Metals Pollutants and Physico- chemical Characterization of Effluents Collected from Different Paint Industries in Addis Ababa. *Ethiopian Journal Forensic Science Crim. Invest* (2017) 5:1–6.
- [23] Yoochatchaval W, Kumakura S, Tanikawa D, Yamaguchi T, Yunus M, Chen S, et al. Anaerobic degradation of palm oil mill effluent. Water Science and Technology (2011) 64(10):2001–2008.
- [24] Balogun OB, Akinsuroju MO, Oluwasola PO. Bacteriological analysis of selected industrial Wastewater in Akure Metropolis. *International Journal of Recent Innovations in Academic Research* (2019) 3(1):228–236.
- [25] WHO Guidelines for drinking water quality. Recommendation. World Health organization Geneva (2018):30–113.